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April 14, 2020  

To: All Potential Bidders 

From: Steve Dawson, Issuing Officer 

Subject: RFP #0320-641-01 – IDPH Hospital Discharge Data Collection 

Amendment One  

 

Please amend the subject RFP to include answers to the following timely received questions. This Amendment 

One shall supersede, modify and/or change all requirements to the contrary in the RFP and associated 

documents. 

 

NOTE:  Certain questions received related to information technology and system requirements will be 

addressed in a separate amendment to be posted no later than April 17, 2020. 

 

1. (Section 1.4.1, p.7) How is the health data currently collected? Physically on paper? Electronically via 

hard drive, or transferred via FTP, API or other methods? 

Answer: Data are currently collected electronically, and transferred to IDPH via FTP. 

2. (Section 1.4.1, p.7) If information comes to us on paper or non-digital format(s), would we then be 

required to transcribe manually and digitize it? 

Answer: Yes. 

3. (Section 1.4.1, p.7) Is there a standardized format for collection of data such as CSV, XML or JSON? 

Answer: There is a standardized format for providing data to IDPH. Collection format between the 

hospitals and Data Intermediary may be determined by the Data Intermediary.  

 4. If there are no funds appropriated for this project, how do you expect the Data Intermediary to be 

compensated for staffing, consulting, development, deployment, travel and other activities that will 

need to be undertaken to implement this project? 

Answer: There are no funds appropriated for this project. As stated in the RFP section 6.6, all costs 

associated with data collection are the responsibility of the vendor. The vendor may implement a fee 

schedule for data access for entities besides IDPH and hospitals. 
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5. Do you expect Data Intermediary to charge a fee for accessing the data after implementation of the 

project to entities other than Hospitals and the Agency? 

Answer: The Data Intermediary may charge a data access fee for entities other than hospitals and the 

agency. 

6. If we are unable to respond to the current RFP due to the funding restrictions, would we be de facto 

disqualified from participating in the work under section 6.4? 

Answer: Yes 

7. Can the Data Intermediary sell non-PII data to third parties and charge for it? 

Answer: Yes. The fee schedule and request approval process must be approved by IDPH. Information 

about charges and fee collection can be found in section 6.6 of the RFP. 

8. (Sec. 6.8.2.6, p. 39) Do you expect the data to be transferred to the Agency’s database server physically 

on a drive or via electronic transfer? 

Answer: Electronic transfer 

9. (Sec. 6.8.2.6, p. 39) Is it safe to assume that the data needs to be encrypted during transit to the 

Agency’s database server? 

Answer: Yes 

10. (Sec. 6.8.2.6, p. 39) Who will have ownership of the data after it is collected? 

Answer: IDPH 

11. (Attachment #5, Sec. B.1, p. 53) Will this require the Data Intermediary to physically visit a Hospital to 

train stakeholders to prepare and upload the data files? 

Answer: Data collection process, and any associated training or technical support will be determined 

by the Data Intermediary. 

12. (Attachment #5, Sec. B.3.6, p. 57) Can the data be stored on AWS Cloud Infrastructure? We are AWS 

Public Sector Partner and can leverage AWS resources to store and secure the data. 

Answer: Yes 

13. (Attachment #5, Sec. B.3.4, p. 56) Are the fields mentioned in Exhibit 1 include everything that needs to 

be extracted, transformed and made available or are there additional fields which need to be used based 

on the NUBC UB-04 Data Specifications. 

Answer: The fields in Exhibit 1 include all variables that must be transferred to IDPH. 
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14. RFP Timeline: 

The Cover Page of the RFP provides that the contract will be for one year with the possibility of five 

extensions for one year. The initial term would allow for six months of data collection between 

implementation (January 1, 2021) and the term of the initial contract (ending July 1, 2021). Despite only 

collecting data for six months, the RFP references annual submission of data and annual file processing in 

several locations (see Section 4.3.5, page 28; Section 6.8, page 38; Section 6.8.3, page 39; and the 

attached Contract). In addition, Section 6.4 of the RFP (page 36) requires the development of an 

implementation plan for a broader data collection system by January 1, 2022. 

The timeline proposed by the Agency would allow for only six months of collected data within the term 

of the Contract prior to reevaluation. This would only produce one full quarter of data and would not 

allow for a full year of data collection, which would hinder any progress towards meeting the long-term 

goals of Section 6.4. 

Suggestion: Respondent suggests an initial three-year contract to ensure a solid data collection baseline 

that allows for more than one quarter of data and a full annual collection of data for reporting purposes. 

The lengthened timeline will also ensure progress in addressing work outlined in Section 6.4. 

Answer: Any changes to contract and program timelines will be addressed in contract negotiations 

after the RFP has been awarded. 

15. Fees and Charges: 

The RFP contains several provisions related to fees and charges. The references to sections where fees 

can be assessed are not always consistent throughout the RFP. For example, the RFP indicates that fees 

may be charged for optional activities (Section 4.5, page 29) and the development of data provided in 

response to external entities requesting health data (Section 6.3.7, page 36). However, another provision 

of the RFP (Section 6.6, page 38) references fees allowed pursuant to Sections 4.3.7 and 6.3.7. Another 

provision (Section 1.4.4, page 9) references fee guidelines found in Section 6.5 (page 38). Section 6.5 

does not appear to be related to fees. The sections referencing fees are not always consistent. 

Respondent is seeking additional guidance from the Agency to fully understand all fee collection 

opportunities. 

Clarification: Please clarify the fees, and corresponding sections within the RFP, that allow Respondent to 

collect fees pursuant to the proposal. 

Answer: With regard to Section 1.4.4, the correct reference should be to Section 6.6.  We apologize for 

any confusion. 

The Data Intermediary may not charge any fees to IDPH or hospitals for any work related to this RFP, 

as outlined in section 4.3.7. The Data Intermediary may optionally develop a data fee schedule and 

request process for external entities, as outlined in section 6.3.7. Section 6.6 further clarifies charges 

and fee collection. 
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16. Subcontractor Definition: 

The RFP references Respondent’s use of a subcontractor in several sections, including Sections 2.20 

(page 16), 2.22 (page 16), and 2.30 (page 19). Data collection can involve a variety of subcontractors that 

may never be involved in the work of collecting and disseminating data (for example, Respondent may 

rely on vendors to complete penetration testing or assist with grouping.) 

Clarification: Please clarify how subcontractor is defined for purposes of the proposal. 

Answer: For the purposes of this RFP, a subcontractor is any party engaged by the Respondent to 

provide services directly related to--or in support of--the services proposed by the Respondent. 

Question: Is the definition of subcontractor consistent throughout all sections of the RFP? 

Answer: Yes. 

17. Questions, Requests for Clarification, and Suggested Changes: 

Section 2.4 (page 10) and the preamble to Section 4 (page 26) both indicate that questions, clarifications, 

and suggestions should be issued pursuant to Section 2.11. Section 2.11 (page 12) does not relate to 

questions, clarifications, or suggestions, but instead addresses disposition of proposals. Respondent 

believes that the appropriate section citation should be to Section 2.7 (page 11). 

Clarification: Please clarify the appropriate citations in Sections 2.4 and 4. 

With regard to both Section 2.4 and the beginning of Section 4, the correct reference should be to 

Section 2.7.  We apologize for any confusion. 

21. Storing and Linking Health Data: 

Section 4.3.1 (page 27) of the RFP indicates that Health Data cannot be linked or stored with other data. 

Respondent would like clarity on the intent of this language as the ability to link certain sets of data can 

enhance the value. For example, use of state data in research and study is enhanced by connecting to 

other data sets like County Health Rankings and census data. 

Clarification: Please clarify the intent and purpose of Section 4.3.1. 

Suggestion: Respondent suggests that the Agency consider allowing greater flexibility in regards to the 

linking of health data. 

Answer: The intent and purpose of Section 4.3.1 is to ensure the appropriate use and governance of 

the Health Data. Data are owned by IDPH and governed under Iowa law. Express written permission is 

required for any individual data linkage, or storage that may allow for data to be accessed and linked 

individually to other data. The Data Intermediary may not link Health Data at the individual level to 
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any other data. Aggregated Health Data can be compared to, or analyzed with, other data in a way 

that complies with IDPH and other relevant confidentiality policies and law. 

22. PII and PHI: 

Throughout the RFP, the Agency uses the terms PII and PHI (see Section 4.3.2, page 27; Section 6.3.7, 

page 36; Section 6.8, page 39; Contract, Section III.B.1.2; Contract pages 54-55.) Respondent seeks 

clarification regarding the use of these terms. 

Clarification: Please clarify the use of the terms PII and PHI and whether the terms are used 

interchangeably in the RFP and contract. 

Question: If the terms are not used interchangeably, how does the Agency define each term? 

Answer: PHI Record the title of the database table containing personally identifiable information (PII). 

These terms refer to any variable that identifies a person. 

 23. Development of New Data Collection System: 

Section 6.4 (page 36) of the RFP outlines and envisions a broader data collection system. The data 

collection system referenced within this Section is not part of the Health Data collection referenced 

throughout all other portions of the RFP. Respondent is seeking clarification on what the Agency is 

seeking in regards to this Section. 

Clarification: Please clarify the level of detail that should be included in response to Section 6.4 and each 

subsection as part of Respondent’s proposal. 

Answer: The respondent should clearly define the process they will use to develop the planning and 

development outlined in Section 6.4, and what other entities will be engaged. 

Clarification: Please clarify whether the RFP will include the elements of Section 6.4 as part of the RFP’s 

Scope of Work or whether Section 6.4 will become part of a future RFP process. 

Answer: Any activities defined in the plan for a new data collection system will become part of a 

future RFP process. 

Question: Can the Agency provide Respondent with any information to show that the terms “health data 

information” and “hospital inpatient, outpatient, and ambulatory information” (as defined in 1996 Iowa 

Acts, Ch. 1212, Section 5, subsection 1, paragraph “a”, subparagraph (4) and 641 IAC 177.3, respectively) 

include “Iowans’ health care encounters from all health care providers in the state” as the RFP states in 

Section 6.4? 

Answer: The purpose of the planning process, to be led by the winning bidder, will be to envision and 

specify future data collection efforts within the context of the Governor's Roundtable 

recommendations and existing Iowa law (including 1996 Iowa Acts, Ch. 1212, Section 5, subsection 1, 

paragraph "a").  If questions exist about the sufficiency of the existing legal authority to enable the 

 
  

5 



 

 

collection and use of data, one outcome of the planning process might be to identify the desirability of 

approaching the Governor and legislature for clarification. 

24. Quarterly File Submission and Initial File Review and Attachment 4: 

Section 6.8.1 (page 39) and Attachment 4 (page 50) outline a process flow for data collection. The 

Respondent acknowledges that this process flow could adequately conclude in data collection that 

meets the needs of the Agency but also recognizes that other work flows may provide an alternate 

collection path while still meeting the data outcomes mandated by the RFP. 

Suggestion: Respondent suggests flexibility in process flow for data collection. 

Answer: Alternative collection paths may be proposed for consideration. 

25. Scope of Work: 

The RFP repeatedly references a Scope of Work. (See Section 2.17.3, page 14; Section 6.4, page 37; and 

Attachment #6). Respondent is unable to locate a Scope of Work. 

Clarification: Please clarify the Agency’s use of the term Scope or Work and identify what constitutes the 

Scope of Work referenced in the proposal. 

Answer: The Scope of Work refers to all activities outlined in this RFP that applicants must address in 

their response, and the successful applicant is expected to perform.  

 

 
  

6 


